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The New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association
(NTWJWA or Association) was founded by Ms. LEUNG Sing Tak, BBS,
MBE, JP in 1965, and was formally registered as a non-profit limited
company in 1967. We are a charitable organisation that strive to
provide quality services to families in need with a core focus on
family. Through our 10 service units, we are committed to promoting
social development and progress, and strives to build a society that
values ethics and morality.

“Rooted in Family, Built on Virtue” is the mission of our Association.
We believe that a stable, harmonious, and loving family contributes is
an important factor in promoting social development, and that it
plays a crucial role in the personal growth and development of
individuals. Since its inception, the Association works closely with
our stakeholders as we are committed to constructing a society
based on morality, emphasising the promotion of moral values,
encourage mutual respect, promote social welfare, and build a better
living environment, in order to promote healthy social development
and progress.

From its inception, our Association was founded with the primary
concern of providing care for the daily living of the women and their
children in New Territories, we set up our first non-profit making
kindergarten in Tsuen Wan, provide practical support services and
organise free classes for women and children. We have also
responded to the unique needs of the elderly in the rural areas by
being the first to provide cultural and recreational activities and
personal service to the elderly in the Hung Shui Kiu district of Yuen
Long. We also actively organise a number of community services and
educational programs to enable the elderly to enhance their sense of
personal competence, improve how society views the elderly
community, and promote social harmony and inclusiveness.

We provide more professional services with the advancement of our
society. We have established schools and kindergartens for the
general public to provide quality academic and moral education. We
have also lead students to participate in various exchange activities
to broaden their horizons and cultivate students independent
thinking and develop them into outstanding leaders.

In the face of rapid social changes in Hong Kong, the Association will
continue to focus on the family, providing learning opportunities,
moral education, independent training. With the support and effort
of all parties, our Association actively promotes education and social
services, and gradually expands the scope of our services to more
locations in Hong Kong. We will continue to care for the
disadvantages to achieve a united and harmonious society.
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“NTWJWA Christian Remembrance

of Grace Primary School” was
established in August.
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Visiting the elderly and distributing souvenirs
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Over the past year, with the dedicated support of our Honorary
President, President, and Advisors, and joint effort of our
Executive Committee, colleagues, and volunteers, we have
proactively and faithfully provided quality services in alignment
to our organisational mission, working together to make a
positive impact in serving our society.

Founded by Ms. LEUNG Sing Tak, BBS, MBE, JP, in 1965, our
Association has always adhered to the mission of “Rooted in
Family, Built on Virtue”, focusing on the family as the core as well
as the beneficiary of our services, while strengthening community
networks and creating a family-like atmosphere anchored on love
and the spirit of teamwork wherever we have been placed to
serve. To commemorate our founder, we have designated 15 May,
the International Day of Families as proclaimed by the UN
General Assembly to reflect the importance the international
community attaches to families, as “Founder's Day” for our
Association since 2023. On the day, our units organise different
family-based celebration activities to promote joyful interactions
and communication among family members, creating the sense
of contentment and happiness.
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Children giving massage to parents
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Children serving tea to parents
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Early Childhood Education

Our Association has been actively cultivating among students a
sense of belonging towards our country. Over the past year, we have
organised various activities to promote Chinese culture, enhancing
young children's understanding of the Motherland. Some of our
nursery schools have incorporated “Chinese Culture” as a key focus
in their curriculum, aligning with various themes of Chinese culture
to promote national education and establish a sense of national
identity among young children.

We value the professional development of our teachers. On addition
to regularly organising training sessions to enhance their
capabilities, we also encourage our staff to engage in professional
development abroad. This year, Principals and teachers from our
Early Childhood Education Services were sent to Australia,
Indonesia, and Mainland China for academic exchanges, gaining
insights into the latest educational trends and broadening their
educational perspectives.

We also actively promote home-school collaboration, working
together with parents to focus on their children's learning and
growth. This year, our nursery schools established their respective
Parent-Teacher Associations, creating a bridge for communication
between home and school, promoting interaction and cooperation
between both parties, and jointly organising various activities to
support the needs of parents and students.

Primary Education Services

Our Association is committed to providing students with diverse and
high-quality education, promoting holistic development, and
enhancing students' knowledge and skills. Our two primary schools,
equipped with STEAM-related facilities, have established dedicated
science exploration areas on campus. This allows students to
engage in various forms of exploration, nurture students'
observation skills, problem-solving skills, and creativity. The schools
also make good use of classroom time by incorporating
transdisciplinary lessons and activities, guiding students to
integrate knowledge from different subjects to unleash student
potential.
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The schools offer comprehensive learning opportunities and organise

various extracurricular activities, allowing students to step outside the
classroom to visit the community and participate in exchanges abroad,
thereby broadening their horizons. This year, our two primary schools
organised or participated in exchange activities in Shanghai, Dongguan,
Guangzhou and Shandong, for expanding students' learning perspectives.

Social Services

Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre and Community Care Centre for the
Elderly under our Social Services Division are dedicated to providing
diversified services for the elderly and their carers in Hung Shui Kiu.
Throughout the year, they served over 30,000 visits in total.

This year, we focused on providing diverse services for the elderly and
their carers, including the implementation of a two-year “Jockey Club
Community eHealth Care Project” to enhance members' awareness of
physical health. We also provided preliminary cognitive assessments,
consultations, service referrals, and set up street stations to promote
Dementia-Friendly Community. We maintained cooperative relationships
with representatives from nearby villages to strengthen rural outreach.
Additionally, we expanded and offered a variety of innovative activities
and programs for the young elderly, and maintained external cooperation
to expand resources and provide diverse services. The units also sustained
cooperation to enhance the awareness of self-health management and
preventive actions among elderly and their carers, to maintain physical,
mental, and spiritual health.

Our Future

To conclude, I would like to express my gratitude to all our partners and
members of the community. With your support and efforts, our services
have been implemented smoothly. In the coming year, we will continue to
uphold our mission of “Rooted in Family, Built on Virtue”, and provide
quality services to our service users, spreading love and care throughout
the community. We look forward to working hand in hand with all
stakeholders to create a better future.

CHOI LEE Christina Maisenne, JP
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Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong Leung
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Corporate Members (as at 31 March 2024)

#2282 R Honorary President

ZEZEL+ Mrs. LEE Josephine MARK

& & President

ERAE kLt Mrs. WONG KWAN Po Chu Alice

EHEESE 2022 - 2025
Executive Committee 2022 - 2025

Z/# Chairperson :
#ZERL L Mrs. CHOI LEE Christina Maisenne, JP

BIEFRE Vice Chairperson :

HFEE LT Dr. KAM Shau Wan Sanly, BBS, MH
E&TTELZ L  Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen
EEIERIL 22+ Mrs. NGAN HO Oi Ling

FlEE Treasurer :
E&fTIELZ L Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen

%8 Members :

21579841 Mrs. CHUA YEUNG Yin Kuen
FFEEBBZ L Mrs. HUI IP Mei Mei Michelle
ZRKEWET  Rev. LEUNG Wing Seen Stephen

EERS 2022-2025
Advisors 2022 - 2025

&2 RERI Honorary Advisors :
EERM%E  Mr. CHOI Tak Shing Stanley, JP

fEIEESE Mr. HO Chi Kuen Raymond
REE84E  Dr. LEUNG Man Fuk Edward
BEFHRE  Mr LO ChiPing

EEES LE  Mr. LO Chun Bun

=WBAREE Mr. WONG Peter Ming Chung

285X 12EER Honorary Legal Advisor :
$4T 4R ATZET Mr. TSE KW. Roy

WigHR R/
Organisation Development Committee

Z[E Chairperson :
HEEEZ LT Mrs. HUI IP Mei Mei Michelle

& Members :

B EZ L Ms. AU YEUNG Monique
BABEHRLE  Mr. CHOW Franky
E&TIELZ L  Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen
EEMEIC L Mrs. NGAN HO Qi Ling
H|EARSEE Mr. WONG Peter Ming Chung

MRFAINERE BES/ME

"Foreign Language Learning Enhancement” Committee

=/ Chairperson :
FFEEE L Mrs. HUL IP Mei Mei Michelle

& Members :
FigHIg 4t Mrs. CHUA YEUNG Yin Kuen

E&TTEZ L Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen
EEMERIS 2t Mrs. NGAN HO Qi Ling

S Bu)VE
Music Talent Committee

E/E Chairperson : BBt Mrs. NGAN HO Oi Ling

E Members:  FEE®E%E  Mr. CHOW Franky
FFEB#ELZ L Mrs. HUIIP Mei Mei Michelle
ZERiffizt  Ms. LEE Susan
ER{TEZ L Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen

RO EER B

Advisory Council on Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

=% Chairperson : #ZFEZERZ £ Mrs. CHOI LEE Christina Maisenne, JP

JERRTEfEE  Dr. FONG Meng Soi Florence
REEFELZ L Ms. LEUNG Hera

RBREBE  Dr. LEUNG Man Fuk Edward
FEELZE  Ms. WAN Tak Yan Phoebe

ME Members :

WRERRES

Management Committee of Nursery Schools

%% Supervisor:  HFEZE{EL  Dr. KAM Shau Wan Sanly, BBS, MH

& Managers :  BRE®X{ET  Dr. CHAN Wai Ling
#£AE[R4L L Mrs. CHOI LEE Christina Maisenne, JP
ZiFRIBL T Mrs. CHUA YEUNG Yin Kuen
SFEREZ L Mrs. HUI IP Mei Mei Michelle
ESfTEZ LT  Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen
EEfAITRI 2+ Mrs. NGAN HO Oi Ling
HERAEHLZ T Mrs. WONG KWAN Po Chu Alice

MARRENEREVERZEARETMBEERR

Sponsoring Body Managers of Incorporated Management
Committee of NTWJWA Leung Sing Tak Primary School

#Z % R4t Mrs. CHOI LEE Christina Maisenne, JP
FEIZRIBL T Mrs. CHUA YEUNG Yin Kuen

fAIERESTE  Mr. HO Chi Kuen Raymond

HHEHET  Dr. KAM Shau Wan Sanly, BBS, MH
B&{TIEXZ LT Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen

EEEEI¢ Lt Mrs. NGAN HO Oi Ling

EMRIE  Mr. WONG PuiLam

(B2 E R E Alternate Sponsoring Body Manager)

MARFRENEEEHRRRNEZIBREGMBEBNAR

Sponsoring Body Managers of Incorporated

Management Committee of NTWJWA Christian
Remembrance of Grace Primary School

BREE{_47EH Rev. CHAN Chap Yan

HFEE L Dr. KAM Shau Wan Sanly, BBS, MH
ERFTEZ L Ms. LOK Yean Ting Karen
i Ms. TANG Suk Han

EfZLZL Ms. WAIYiLing Elaine

* B EHT

*Names are listed in alphabetical order of surname
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MR B IRFS Early Childhood Education Services

The New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association has always
upheld the motto “Rooted in Family, Built on Virtue”. It strives to do the
best and keeps pace with the times. Through our five nursery schools
(Cheung Fat Nursery School, Fanling Nursery School, Pok Hong Nursery
School, Sheung Shui Nursery School, Yuen Long Nursery School) and
one kindergarten (Leung Sing Tak Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten), we
serve more than 600 children aged two to six and provide workshops
and seminars to their parents.

Our Association hosted a Joint-school Graduation Ceremony cum
Children's Performance with the theme “Three Generations of Blissful
Harmony” on 19 June 2023 at the Kwai Tsing Theatre. Ms. LEUNG Wing
Shan Magnolia, Principal Education Officer (Kindergarten Education) of
the Education Bureau, was our guest of honour. The ceremony included
singing the school anthem and the graduation song by the graduates
from five schools, certificate presentation and childhood video. There
was also a group performance done by 133 graduates together with 134
parents and grandparents. During the process, children learned about
different costumes, games and sceneries from different eras. The
joint-school graduation ceremony left a wonderful memory for the
three generations.
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We joined the 23rd Conference of PECERA

On 12 August 2023, we invited Plan International Hong Kong to hold a
“Child Safeguarding” workshop at Chi Hong Primary School. The
workshop introduced the “Child Safeguarding Policy”, teachers' code of
conduct, the mechanism for intervention for students affected by child
maltreatment, the Mandatory Reporting of Child Abuse Bill, teachers'
legal liability and the application and importance of risk assessments.

On 3 October 2023, teachers from our early childhood services attended
the“Optimisation of Child Assessment for Quality Learning and
Teaching: Diversified Modes and Strategies” workshop at Chi Hong
Primary School, with Dr. CHEUNG Sum Kwing Sam, Assistant Professor
at the Education University of Hong Kong as the speaker. Dr. CHEUNG
shared on creating classroom environments, the relationship between
teacher-child interaction and child assessment, and various types of
play activities to assess children's learning and development. Teachers
learnt how to use “play” to assess children's performance from
multiple perspectives, thereby improving their teaching effectiveness
and optimising our schools' observation and assessment content.

F@tiﬂ%ﬂfﬁﬁi&%ﬂiﬂ%ﬂﬁ% : %ﬁ%*ﬁiﬁ&%ﬂm I1"Fi73
“Optimisation of Child Assessment for Quality Learning and Teaching:
Diversified Modes and Strategies” workshop

Our services have always placed great importance on the professional
development of its management and teachers. We regularly send our
staff abroad for professional exchanges to broaden their educational
perspectives. Through these exchanges, the latest educational
information is also shared with colleagues, benefiting the children.

e School Supervisor Dr. Sanly KAM, BBS, MH, Director of Early
Childhood Education Services Mrs. Adelina CHAN, Principal Holly
CHEUNG and Principal Winnie KONG participated in the 23rd
Conference of Pacific Early Childhood Education Research
Association (PECERA) in Bali, Indonesia from 7-9 July 2023.

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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R B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

e Three principals, four senior teachers and 15 teachers from our
schools participated in the “Anji Play - Hong Kong Kindergarten
Education Exchange Program”organised by the Association of Hong
Kong Kindergarten Education Professional Exchange between 24-27
October 2023, 5-8 November 2023 and 24-25 March 2024
respectively. Our staff visited different Anji Play practising
kindergartens in Huzhou, Shanghai and Guangzhou, thereby
strengthening the collaboration and exchange of preschool

education between Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Our staffs joined the “Anji Play - Hong Kong Kindergarten Education Exchange Program”
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Our principals joined the “Kindergarten Visits to
Australia for Kindergarten Principals”
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e Qur principals, Venus WONG, Holly CHEUNG and Winnie KONG,
participated in the “Kindergarten Visits to Australia for Kindergarten
Principals”organised by the Education Bureau from 19-25
November 2023. Through visiting the education department,
university, kindergarten, nursery school, preschool institution and
professional sharing, the principals were exposed to the most
recent development of early childhood education in Australia and
their professional perspective was broadened.

e Principal Holly CHEUNG and Principal Winnie KONG participated in
the “12th Shenzhen - Hong Kong Principals Forum” organised by
the Education Bureau on 8 December 2023. Through keynote
speeches, professional exchanges and group experience sharing by
expert scholars and principals of Shenzhen, Macau, Hong Kong and
other Greater Bay Area cities, principals' continuing professional
development were promoted.

2 I iBR K it s

Shenzhen-Hong kong Princi

RELRE ME+ @B RRRE
Our principal joined the “12th Shenzhen - Hong Kong Principlas Forum”

R mEENE 2023-2024 FiR



%R EBRFS Early Childhood Education Services

B TRBENRERA 2023 F 9 BRIIREHEAD
Z R ERIRINER RESIR 2 BRIME R EE
BUBHGFRR - BERREESE  HEIGEF
THEBEENS 0SS ERRAER - XREENSEF
PRRSREREMRREMNEE  BRERIRER  E
FREFHFLNTE  REXBEFLZEE
&

ANIRFN\ZHETENRERRHE BN "5 28 BXRE
HEMETE]L RUBVOHE « RIBFHRE -

LUSE )& RIS AR AL 2023

. ﬁ TEACHERS’ DAY AND COMMENDATION CERTIFICATE PRESENTATION CEREMONY

s $(BF 6 & R @i%kaﬁﬁ“ﬁ-ﬁ s g AN

commeNDRTON

i TEACHERS’ DAY AND Ct ION CERTIFICATE

it Y

~ ~

o

~

HEmES [5528/E FRIZHEm =18l g

The Parent-Teacher Associations (PTAs) of our five Nursery Schools
were established in September 2023, with aim to strengthen the
connection and communication between parents and schools,
fostering a collaborative partnership. Through close cooperation
between families and schools, we aim to promote the holistic
development of children in their academic and personal growth. The
PTAs organised various developmental and recreational activities
annually, aimed at unleashing the potential of parents, enhancing their
understanding of their children's needs, and fostering relationships
between parents and their children.
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Eight teachers from our six schools were awarded the “28th Teacher
Commendation Scheme” organised by the Education Bureau for their
teaching enthusiasm and outstanding performance.
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Our teachers were awarded the “28th Teacher Commendation Scheme”
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Service Statistics

MREREINERZEDRER
NTWJWA Cheung Fat Nursery School

5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services -

(= 2024 £ 3 B 31 HWER)
(as at 31 March 2024)

S IRREN g Lk 2K
NTWJWA Sheung Shui Nursery School

SEFIYYTER SEFIYUYTER o)

HERBITIERE
Average Usage Rate of Occasional Child
Care Service

No. of Staff

SRR ET EH AN R
NTWJWA Fanling Nursery School

BERFEFIIERE
Average Usage Rate of Occasional Child
Care Service

No. of Staff

MSIRIR AT & TR SRR
NTWJWA Yuen Long Nursery School

SEFHRER SEFHYWER
Annual Average Rate of Student Intake 1000/0 Annual Average Rate of Student Intake 1000/0

HERBTIERER
Average Usage Rate of Occasional Child
Care Service

No. of Staff

AR ET S B R 2R
NTWJWA Pok Hong Nursery School

HEIRF T ERE
Average Usage Rate of Occasional Child
Care Service

S AE
No. of Staff

MEEHRE §REBHRXHHEE
Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong Leung Sing Tak

Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
SEFHWRER 939
Annual Average Rate of Student Intake 0 SETIRER
wverage 90%
Annual Average Rate of Student Intake
HEERFS AR
Average Usage Rate of Occasional Child 12 10/0 S A B
Care Service Noﬁof Staff

No. of Staff
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MR B IRFS Early Childhood Education Services

FsHmIREN FRENHBR
NTWJWA Cheung Fat Nursery School

MrpEX W HFESE

“Rich and Intriguing Chinese Culture.”

BERAFEEL THEXL REREY  INENRHEIRSHEE  BRORRRITEEEFE X CEERIIYEZE

This year, our school focuses on promoting “Chinese Culture” We aim to strengthen children's sense of national identity

while promoting the profundity and fascinating aspects of Chinese culture to parents and the community.
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Teacher Training

Our school invited Mr. Kenny OR, the founder of Little Green Feet
Limited, to conduct two teacher training sessions on Chinese cultural
education. The sessions covered “How to Utilise Picture Books to
Promote Chinese Cultural Education” and “Chinese Cultural Activities
Integrated with Thematic Teaching” . During the training, our teachers
learned about the principles of selecting appropriate Chinese cultural
picture books, techniques for effectively interpreting the books, and
how to organise related hands-on experiential activities, such as
making stone lions, tie-dyeing, and stone rubbing. This enhanced the
teachers' knowledge and capabilities in leading Chinese cultural
activities for our students.
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Children made the tri-color glutinous rice balls together
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%R B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Our school employs thematic picture books, traditional Chinese
festivals or events like the “24 Solar Terms cum Birthday Celebrations”
to enrich children's understanding of the significance of Chinese culture
and traditional customs. For instance, during the “Heavy Snow” and
“Winter Solstice” solar term birthday celebrations in December 2023,
our teachers led the children in winter wonderland exploration
activities, snowball fights, and creating plum blossom paintings. These
activities provided insights of plants and natural scenery changes in the
winter. Additionally, the children were guided to make tri-colour
glutinous rice balls which conveyed the meaning of “family reunion”

during the “Winter Solstice”.

4 SEAETTT SRR
Children having the snowball fights

Our school showcased the children's learning achievements in Chinese
culture through diverse presentation formats and organised
parent-child celebration activities during different festivals. For
instance, the school held a “Welcoming and Celebrating the Year of the
Dragon cum Chinese Culture” learning exhibition. Under the theme of
“Chinese Culture Month”, various thematic studies were conducted.
K1 class even carried out a special study on pandas. On the event day,
they performed “Kung Fu Panda” for the parents, displayed activity
photos and related artwork on the theme. The parents and children

also enjoyed making “panda rice balls” together.

“Welcoming and Celebrating the Year of the Dragon cum Chinese Culture” learning exhibition
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BB BFBRFS Early Childhood Education Services
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The artworks “Curious Face Masks” by the K3 students
were being exhibited at the MTR Community Art Gallery

In October 2023, the school exhibited artworks by K3 students at the
MTR Community Art Gallery in Lai King Station, titled “Curious Face
Masks”. The students used ropes and watercolors to create
symmetrical patterns, and applied traditional ink wash to add the
finishing touches to the face masks, promoting Chinese culture to the
public.

Furthermore, in February 2024, the school participated in the “Chinese
New Year Celebration 2024” event organised by Maritime Square. K1 to
K3 students delivered captivating New Year song and dance
performances. To celebrate the Year of the Dragon, the K3 class even
performed the elegant “Dragon Fan” dance, spreading New Year

blessings and joy to the parents and the public.

BRI EERERE2024)

“Chinese New Year Celebration 2024” at Maritime Square.
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R B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

o ARIENEEE 2023 FEMSKRERRETEL 2 TE * Inthe “Caring School Award Scheme 2023”, our school received
BREL &2 (B2FiEfd)- Honours in the “Caring School Award” (Kindergarten Division).

o ARBEMERFE=[zEPz 12024 ZELHFRERX * Our school received a Merit Award in the “2024 Territory-wide Young
MELLE ) XEREEEENE » KEERE - Children's English Song Singing Contest” (Preliminaries - Kwai Tsing

& Tsuen Wan) organised by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.
o IHE 2023-2024 FE "REKER) 51E - TE
IR2EE ) o  Our school received Active Participation Award in the “Food for Good
@ Campus” Program (2023-2024).
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We received a Merit Award in the “2024 Territory-wide Young Children's English Song Singing Contest” (Preliminaries - Kwai Tsing & Tsuen Wan)
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BB EBRFS Early Childhood Education Services
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This year, our school's development focuses on “enhancing young children's understanding of Chinese cultural arts
and Chinese virtues, and promoting Chinese culture”. Various stakeholders are involved to enhance the learning

effectiveness of young children.
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Dough figurines and paper cutting
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Our school hired professional instructors to conduct school-wide
teacher training activities, including dough figurines, paper cutting,
tie-dyeing, Chinese ink painting and calligraphy, and rainbow
calligraphy. The teachers applied the skills they learned into their
teaching and guided children to create various art pieces. Through
these training sessions, our teachers not only strengthened their
understanding of Chinese arts, but also helped promote Chinese
culture through their own improvement.

BRI T
“Tie-dyeing” workshop

The school compiled the music and visual arts curriculum before the
start of the school year, systematically incorporating Chinese music
and visual arts with Chinese cultural characteristics into different
themes. Students learn about the characteristics of Chinese music
through different aspects such as music appreciation, musical
instruments and dance. Additionally, the school invited experts to
conduct workshops in line with the school's visual arts curriculum.
This not only deepens children's understanding of Chinese arts, but
also allows them to integrate their creativity and showcase the
unique aspects of Chinese arts.

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024



HRHEBBRFS Early Childhood Education Services

BIh AIRRRR 2024 F£1 BEE THEXLA L AURE Furthermore, our school launched the “Chinese Culture Month” in
R 45RE TERNDL  T)IBIEE L  TRRSIRL R OTRE January 2024. During the learning process, young children showed
T, EREE - FItEROEE T BEERIRBYR great interest in the “lion dance”, “Sichuan opera face-changing”,
EITEERIEE 0 EYRICERIINARESE - 410 - “shadow puppetry” and “juggling”. Therefore, the school invited
RIS EETHIEMERE  IREEE « RIFRS professional teams to conduct experiential activities for the
BUBRETEMIRS ELSE - children, allowing them to apply what they experienced in their

learning. For example, they performed street juggling, explored light
and shadow, made shadow puppets, and performed lion dances in
the dramatic corners.
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In order to cultivate the Chinese virtues of “benevolence”, “propriety”,

and “filial piety” in young children, the school integrated these
three virtues into thematic teaching activities this year. For example:

TEKALEENE T, Mg, 2, fyrhE=sm, X Benevolence - Under the “Animals” theme, children learned to care
FEIEE = (FE AR A T B EEE) o 40 ¢ for and treat animals kindly by personally taking care of them. They

also designed an animal care area to prevent animals from being
MZi- & TEpy £EH 0 YRBERSRER/NEY) harmed.
SENERSTHYNRE  TERABDRER
LUREMZREE -
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MEHEBRRFS Early Childhood Education Services
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Taking care of the turtle
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Experiencing traditional Chinese toys
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Propriety - Under the “Food” theme, children learned dining and
tea etiquettes at the dramatic corner and by visiting a teahouse.

Filial piety - Under the “Family” theme, children experienced the
hardships of a pregnant mother through simulation, learned to help
with chores and take responsibility for their own tasks, thereby
reducing their parents' burden, cultivating a sense of gratitude and
filial piety.

USSR IIBES & B E PRY=EsS
Children experienced the hardships of a
pregnant mother through simulation

Learning washing the dishes by themselves

The school has designed different “Moral Task Booklets” based on
the themes of “benevolence”, “propriety” and “filial piety”, allowing
children to extend what they have learned from the classroom to
their daily lives. Children completed the tasks in the booklets and
the parents provided positive feedback, such as children eating
calmly and quietly during meals, helping to clean up dishes, and
reminding their parents to use eco-friendly bags instead of plastic
bags.

Furthermore, on 16 March 2024, the school held a “Parent-Child
Chinese Culture Day” . Besides showcasing children's visual art
works with Chinese cultural characteristics, it also allowed parents
and children to experience traditional Chinese toys, food, and
different ethnic costumes together.

SN OR

Yummy dragon's beard candy

MEHEBRRE
Chinese Visual Arts Exhibition



5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

AEEERFABRER LERIREEIHEITIEE - This year, the school has also organised a parent volunteer team to
EFERRER AT EE S  KEZ B BHEUE Ui T ED EIRE assist the school in carrying out various activities, including booth
TEBRTEE  RERAZSLERGEIHETERIEE » 88 games and making snowy mooncakes during the Mid-Autumn
EMFI IR R Festival, and wrapping rice dumplings during the Dragon Boat

Festival. Through the active participation and support from the
# L\ parents, an effective home-school collaboration was achieved.

REREE A

Making snowy mooncakes Teaching children to wrap rice dumplings

RERBIRIENKEA ﬁ#J

Assisting with booth games during
the Mid-Autumn Festival

{ RE TR IEE - ’

o AMRZEFBEBELHBERNSEE—+ERE
=

e e * Qur co-ed team won 3rd place in the HHCKLA Buddhist Wisdom
GBYHE 4 x 25 KBNS PEBLEEE P

Primary School-The 20th School Sports Meet and Kindergarten

E o
4x25m Relay
s ARZEFBIESELHUER/NEE " TERE o ) o
SENHEE 4 x 25 KIEHE » B FAITTE o e Our girls' team won 2nd place in the HHCKLA Buddhist Wisdom
- } Primary School-The 20th School Sports Meet and Kindergarten
* ARZEEFBIEEELHIES/NEE_TERE 4x25m Relay
FENHEE 4 x 25 KEHE  XEBSFEFE - . . .
e Our boys' team won 3rd place in the HHCKLA Buddhist Wisdom
o« ARMCWEIRE HKEE/\ESBREEE Primary School-The 20th School Sports Meet and Kindergarten
REKIEFE - 4x25m Relay

e Two students won 3rd place in the Mathematics Competition (K3

group), organised by Alliance Primary School, Sheung Shui.

' 3 B -
EBEREHHBES/ NP % + &éﬁgfdlﬁl4 X 257k?§j7§
HHCKLA Buddhist Wisdom Primary School-The 20th School Sports Meet and Kindergarten 4x25m Relay
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5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

SIRAFEL THEEREM, /BEER  NRNRRETEL  RAMBCHEARNSH -

This year, our school focuses on promoting “Traditional Chinese Art”, aiming to enhance children's knowledge of

Chinese culture and cultivate their sense of Chinese identity.

RIBFE NSRS IRHENETKES  BIHRRE
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Teacher art training

Our school invited art instructors to provide training in Chinese ink
painting, paper cutting, and pottery to all teachers, enabling them to
acquire relevant skills and effective teaching methods. Additionally,
we utilised the “Professional Capacity Enhancement Grant ” to offer
all teaching staff the “Carl Orff Autumn and Winter K1 to K3 Music
Game Course (New Cantonese Version)”, enhancing teachers' skills
in leading music activities. The learning of traditional Chinese songs

and folk dances fostered teachers' understanding of Chinese culture.

HENS BBk ESE

Teachers learning Chinese dance
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M5B IRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Children's Learning

Our school provided a variety of activities for children to learn about
traditional Chinese art and culture. By visiting the “Hong Kong Toy
Story” exhibition at the Hong Kong Heritage Museum, the Cantonese
Opera Heritage Hall, and Lai Chi Kok Park, children explored and
appreciated traditional Chinese games, cuisine and architecture. We
also invited professional teams to perform Sichuan Opera
face-changing for our children, allowing them to learn about the
history and different mask designs of face-changing, and to
appreciate the unique essence of Chinese Sichuan Opera.

Furthermore, our school incorporated Chinese culture and art, such
as Chinese ink painting, blue-and-white porcelain, clay modeling,
paper cutting, and Chinese dance, into our monthly thematic
activities. These activities enhanced children's understanding and
appreciation of Chinese art, allowing them to experience the
national artistic and cultural heritage, thereby fostering a sense of
national identity.
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MR B IRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Home-School Partnership

Our school organised various activities for parents and children to
experience traditional Chinese art and culture together.
Parent-child celebrations were held during different festivals,
including “Harmony and Reunion in Mid-Autumn” and “Welcoming
the Dragon Year in Spring”, introducing the customs and meanings
behind traditional festivals. Parents and children enjoyed shadow
play and the making of dragon's beard candy, deepening their
understanding of traditional Chinese culture and customs.

Furthermore, in line with the Lion Dance theme, our school invited
parents who are lion dance experts to perform the lion dance,
answer children's questions, and teach the basic steps of lion
dance, initiating a deeper exploration of the theme among children.

Lastly, our school organised a Chinese culture exhibition to
showcase children's artwork and share their learning achievements,
enhancing parents' appreciation for traditional Chinese culture.
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Community Promotion

Our school has been invited by the Federation of Hong Kong
Shenzhen Associations to participate in the ““Sha Tin Festive
Vibes” Lantern Festival Fun Day” as guest performers and took part
in traditional Chinese cultural booth games, providing an
opportunity for children to experience the customs and traditions of
the Lantern Festival.
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M5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

LS Em& KM B AR EGEEHUS « K FEELE Our school was visited by Professor LI Minyi from the Faculty of

HENREeEEERE B HERITE KR Education at Beijing Normal University, the professional team from

2023 F 11 B 15 BR 17 BEEHAROETERIAE - Pacific Early Childhood Education Research Association (PECERA)
and members of the Chor Hang Educational Research Institute on 15

HEPAEHEVEEREXENISEELHE 15 and 17 November 2023.

BIETEAR 2024 F 3 B 12 BEGARET2EH

BRFEE o Our school was visited by Dr. Cindy LAU, Professional Consultant of

the Department of Educational Psychology at the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and 15 master's students on 12 March 2024.

BEBPXASHE EERBT2EREH
Visit by master's students from the Department of
Educational Psychology, the Chinese University of Hong Kong
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* Our school won Bronze Award in the “Call for Action: Sharing of
Parent-child Games” (Second Quarter) (Kindergarten Group)
organised by the Education Bureau.

e Our school won Bronze Award in the “Food for Good @ Campus”
Program (2023-2024).
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¢ Inthe “Caring School Award Scheme 2023”, our school received
Honours in the “Caring School Award” (Kindergarten Division).

* Inthe “2024 Territory-wide Young Children's English Song Singing

éﬁr2024é%£ﬁ§é§*astmﬂ5tb§15&55@2& Contest” (Preliminaries - Shatin) organised by the Tung Wah
2024 Territory-wide Young Children's English Song Singing Group of Hospitals, our school received a Merit Award.

Contest (Preliminaries - Shatin), Merit Award

AR REEN S 2023-2024 FiR .



5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services
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Our school has established a character curriculum based on the traditional Chinese virtues of “benevolence,

righteousness, propriety, wisdom, and integrity” . Additionally, we have combined it with aspects of the traditional 24

solar terms to showcase the traditional wisdom of Chinese culture. Through the experience of traditional Chinese arts,

the program aims to cultivate positive values, promote national education, and establish national identity.
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Jockey Club “CoolPlay” Project Phase 2
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Teacher training

Our school participated in the Jockey Club “CoolPlay” Project Phase
2. There were four professional training sessions and four on-site
professional guidance sessions, including lesson planning, lesson
observation and lesson evaluation. Teachers learned how to help
children learn through exploration as well as understand the
importance of the teacher's role and the learning environmental
setup. The program co-organisers also held three parent-child
science exploration workshops to enrich their learning experience.

Our school participated in the Quality Education Fund's “Enhanced
My Pledge to Act Funding Program” and conducted a series of
teacher training and on-site professional guidance services.
Teachers learned how to design various learning experiences for
children based on traditional arts such as yangge dance, water
sleeve dance, fan painting, sugar painting, Dragon Boat Festival
five-color bracelet, and juggling. Teachers were able to deepen their
understanding of the essence of traditional Chinese arts, and then
applied it in their teaching to enhance children's knowledge of
Chinese art.

We also utilised the “Professional Capacity Enhancement Grant” to
provide body movement training for all our teachers, enhancing
their skills in leading music and movement activities. During the
training, teachers learned to use different parts of their bodies to
explore the space, angles and speed of objects, completed various
tasks through group collaboration, and recognised the possibilities
of the body in a pleasant atmosphere. Later, the school held a
parent-child movement class, allowing parents to experience the joy
of physical activity as well as strengthen the relationship with their
children.
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Body movement workshop
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Discovering insects during “ Insects waken”

M35 R IR

Egg-balancing game during “Spring commences”
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MR B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Our school provided a variety of activities for young children to
experience the culture and history of ancient and modern China,
such as Chinese ink painting, classical poetry, Chinese dance,
folktales and traditional Chinese toys. This year, the school also
designed activities in line with the 24 solar terms, allowing children
to experience different customs. For example, children planted crops
during “Corn Rain”; reaped a bountiful harvest during “Autumnal
Equinox” ; and practiced calligraphy, painting, and the egg-balancing
game during “Spring commences”. During “Insects waken”, they
discovered insects and made insect repellent herbal sachets as gifts
to their family members and the elderly, expressing “gratitude” and
“care” to others and demonstrating the virtues of “benevolence”

and “propriety”.

EF'IEin
Traditional Chinese toys

RS
Reading Tang poetry

SIS
Planting during “Corn Rain”

Our school also invited masters of traditional Chinese magic circus
and shadow puppetry to the campus. Through their diverse
performances and theatre shadow puppetry, the young children
learned about traditional folk arts and appreciated the artistic
value of Chinese intangible cultural heritage.

i,
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EFBOE R
Traditional Chinese magic and shadow puppetry
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Tea ceremony
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Lunar New Year activities

In addition, we incorporated traditional Chinese art performances
into the school's curriculums of all classes, including juggling,
Shaolin Kung Fu, tea ceremonies, thereby deepening children's
expression of Chinese art and culture.

On 16 December 2023, our school held a “40th Anniversary
Celebration” event. We designed different activities in line with the
school's principles of “Green Campus” and “Family-oriented”,
including 40th Anniversary opening ceremony, awards presentation
for 40th Anniversary Logo and Slogan Design, flag raising ceremony,
children's performances, rooftop booths, goods exchange, time
tunnel exhibits, food fair, and art exhibition. These activities fully
showcased the school's environmentally friendly feature and
family-like atmosphere. In addition to the school managers and
principals from various schools, industry friends and community
members were also invited, including current students and parents,
alumni and former staff, with a total attendance of around 300

people. The atmosphere was lively and warm throughout the day.

O+ B SR EE 15D

“40th Anniversary Celebration”

This year, we established our first Parent-Teacher Association and
formed a team of parent volunteers. These parent volunteers
assisted with on-campus activities. For example, during the Lunar
New Year Fair, they performed Chinese calligraphy, wrote Spring
Festival couplets, and taught calligraphy skills to the children at the
booths.

We also organised various visit activities through a family volunteer
team. The members at the elderly centre quickly bonded with our
volunteer team, promoting intergenerational harmony. The children

demonstrated excellent virtues such as “benevolence”, “filial piety”,
“gratitude”, and “respect” during these visits.

BBEEPD
Visit the Elderly Centre
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R B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

In December 2023, our school was invited by Landmark North to
participate in the “Joyful Christmas Caroling” event. Our K2 and K3
students performed three Christmas carols, spreading a joyful
Christmas atmosphere to the community. They also visited an
elderly centre, and showcased traditional Chinese virtues even
during a Western festival. They sent care and blessings to the
community, demonstrated the spirit of “benevolence” and
“propriety”.

e Our school received the Certificate of Merit in the “2022 Hong
Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence - Schools (Pre-school)”
and a Certificate of Merit in the “Best Green Education Initiative

Award”.

e Our school won Silver Award in the “2024 Territory-wide Young
Children's English Song Singing Contest” (Preliminaries - North
District and Tai Po).

e Our school won the Outstanding Award in the “2023-24 Hong
Kong Kindergarten Flag-raising Competition” organised by the

Association of Hong Kong Flag-guards.

e Our K2 students won 2nd runner-up in the Kindergarten Sports
Challenge Cup organised by the TWGHs Hong Kong and Kowloon
Electrical Appliances Merchants Association Limited School.

sy
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e In the “Caring School Award
Scheme 2023”, our school
received the Merit Award
(Kindergarten Division) under
the Outstanding Caring School
“Accept differences, respect and
tolerate” theme.

e Our school won Silver Award in
the “Food for Good @ Campus”
Program (2023-2024).
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This year, our school focuses on promoting children's problem-solving skills through self-directed exploration play.

Through systematic and integrated curriculum design, free play is incorporated into the curriculum to enhance

children's curiosity, spirit of exploration and self-directed learning attitude.
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Our school attaches great importance to the robustness of
curriculum development and the professional development of
teachers. This school year, we participated in the KeySteps@JC
(Phase Two) “Environmental Assessment Peer Mentorship” training
program. We learned to use the internationally recognised “Early
Childhood Environment Rating Scale” to provide and continuously
review appropriate and enriching teaching environments for our
children. The school also participated in professional overseas
exchange programs organised by the Education Bureau and the
Hong Kong Kindergarten Education Professional Exchange
Association. Our principal visited Australia with the Education
Bureau to learn about the local education system and environment,
while five teachers visited Shanghai, Hangzhou and Guangzhou with
the Hong Kong Kindergarten Education Professional Exchange
Association to observe the characteristics of Anji Play in Mainland
China. After the academic exchanges, our principal led the teachers
to share, reflect and discuss their experiences and develop feasible
and appropriate strategies into our school features.

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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Teachers experience Anji play
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Principal Kong inspected the Australian education ) 1 Coaches from the “Environmental Assessment
system and environment ’ ub Peer Mentorship”came to assess our school

£ TREEEHEFR o HETIRIEY RAVE B Our teachers designed “Happy Friday” based on the children's
RUEEEEEEREENERE  BHRRBEHEE interests and experiences. These sessions provided a real,
BEYEEREE  BFRFNMR  BHRESEEE meaningful and enriching environment for children to accumulate
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experiential learning, establish daily routines, engage in hands-on
exploration and investigation, allowing them to learn mutual
respect, cooperation with others, and develop a love for nature.
Additionally, through the “Shared Thinking” discussions, children
engaged in deeper exploration and discovery of the themes and
achieved autonomous learning.
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HFRFNRRBRGKIEY Peers discuss and
Hands-on manipulation and exploration of investigate together

the variations of mud mixed water

) FAERENEIRGEHR T
Children find interesting shadows
inside a black hole
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Parents gain a multifaceted understanding
about their children's school life

KREFR MAUSERRR T SEIERIINERE
RERZERER  BESBYHEEREFEEIRBG
SRR BHEERNE  FEABHEZERYE LR
ST - @Eﬁﬁ&kixi@@?ﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%?—
B8 ) TRFEEFHTIEAEIIR ) B TREEE
1) ERER  2EEIRMOEE  ERfERRE -
ERMRAERTREAR « PRERSESERS
BERRENRBEFRRNEE > UHEERE—T=
BiEEEmN TEHEE IRE ) EBBERNMER
g 120 RIBRBE 0 BRANEIEEDET R

Hb°

—~

Schools and parents firmly believe in the importance of play in the
lives, learning, and development of young children. Children can
develop their maximum potential through play. In response to
“International Play Day” on 11 June each year, the Parent-Teacher
Association collaborated with the “Playright Children's Play
Association” to organise play activities. This allows children to
engage in self-directed play and exploration, while parents
volunteer to assist the school in implementing free play by
observing and recording the children's play activities. The event
helps parents understand children's thinking, focus, observation,
and organisation skills. When children of different ages come
together, they can experience various spontaneous learning
opportunities, including on-the-spot adjustment, cooperation,
patience, and even creative problem-solving. The event has
received participation and support from parents, working together
to provide high-quality early childhood education services.

This school year, some professionals and scholars visited our
“Happy Friday”. Among the visitors were members of the Hong Kong
Early Childhood Education Professional Exchange Association's Anji
Play Learning Circle, Professor Kathy SYLVA from the University of
Oxford's Department of Education (Educational Psychology), and Dr.
Maria LEE, President of the Pacific Early Childhood Education
Research Association (Hong Kong). They visited our “Happy Friday”
sessions and gave positive feedback. They believed that the school
had excelled in creating an environment and preparing materials
that foster children's autonomous exploration and learning. They
suggested ways for us to further utilise the “Shared Thinking”

sessions to enhance children's logical thinking and problem-solving
skills.

YT - PR ERE L AR S AR R | R A g7 EEMEE

Professor Kathy SYLVA and Dr. Maria LEE visited our “Happy Friday”
sessions and gave positive feedback
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5B BRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Yuen Long Nursery School was the first kindergarten established by
our founder Ms. LEUNG Sing Tak, BBS, MBE, JP. It officially opened
on 9 June 1978 to provide subsidised education for underprivileged
children in the Yuen Long district. Our school has been in operation
for 45 years. On 9 June 2023, we held a “45th Anniversary Celebration
cum Children's Art Exhibition”, inviting the industry professionals,
local parents and children to participate. In addition to the opening
ceremony, a series of celebratory activities were held, including a
parent-child English learning workshop, a parent-child sensory
theatre and a children's art exhibition.

* Qur school won the “Outstanding Lesson Plan Design Award” in the
“Creative Lesson Plan Competition” and the “Platinum Award” in
the “Project M? Award Scheme’, organised by Project Morals & Money
( Project M?) and co-organised by the Education Bureau.

* Inthe “Caring School Award Scheme 2023”, our school received
Honours in the “Caring School Award” (Kindergarten Division).

e Our school won Silver Award in the “2023-24 Hong Kong
Kindergarten Flag-Raising Competition” organised by the
Association of Hong Kong Flag-guards.

e Ourschool received a Merit Award in the “2024 Territory-wide Young
Children's English Song Singing Contest” (Preliminaries - Yuen Long).
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Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong Leung Sing
Tak Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
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Unleash Creativity through Exploratory Learning
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Teacher Training

Our teachers participated in the Hong Kong Jockey Club CoolPlay
project, a joint initiative of Yew Chung College of Early Childhood
Education and Hong Kong Christian Service. The program aims to
give teachers inspiration to incorporate exploratory learning into the
current curriculum so as to stimulate children's interest and talent in
STEAM exploration. It is hoped to cultivate an innovative thinking
from a young age, enabling them to excel in their respective fields in
the future.

Moreover, all our teachers attended a training workshop on Orff
Music Pedagogy. Activities such as rhythmic movements, singing,
dancing, ensemble playing and improvising have broadened
teachers' understanding of music and enhanced their capacity to
plan and execute diverse music activities. Our goal is to spark
children's love and interest in music, increase their imagination and
creativity, and build children's motivation for learning through
quality music education.

Children's Learning

This year, our school aimed to promote our children's exploring
learning skills. To attain this, the school has introduced a STEM Wall,
a magnetic wall and a giant block area where children were allowed
to play and explore independently. Children's exploration spirit and
creativity were stimulated as they learnt to manipulate tools, ask
questions and verify during the building and reassembling process.
The school has also created a rich and diverse sensory-stimulating
“sensory table” for children to explore different natural materials so
as to develop their sensitivity as well as their observation and
perception skills.

@ New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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Ak HEMIR AN RIRM ST CARETIREE S » & Our teachers also provided students with diverse exploration and
BISE3HE T, hEERE » ANEHTFIREEFSTSEAVMER -~ 8 hand-on opportunities such as how launchers were made, how
BRI AHBERRINABENIES  FRENRESN S magnetic car attract and repel, and how to stack paper cups,
R ENRIBBEIRISE  BERE B B encouraging them to learn by doing. Children acquired first-hand
BIVE  EEBE—FHKES » (FXREEE ez » /i experience through actual participation, autonomous exploration,
BORE  ERZDERAIE MM BEINmE hypothesis, discovery and creation. Through play and actual
ge  WIEEBT2BRIRFAETH o experiences, children's creativity, thinking, problem-solving and
exploration spirit were inspired and nurtured.

AREREBGEENAEELNEBEE 15 Our kindergarten offered various after-school extracurricular
K-POP 2EI5 » TEz0BkE « BROE ~ |WEEEEE ~ /X activities including K-POP dance, fancy rope skipping, abacus
HE ARFIZE - REHE HHKE KEE K mental arithmetic, English conversation, phonics, creative crafts, oil
FI% FERUNEENRZHSENEE  EEARE painting, oil pastel painting, watercolour painting and light clay
AYERE ° modelling. We hope to cultivate students' diverse interests and

develop their different potentials through these activities.
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Parents' participation in the “Six-Blocks Workshop”

Our school actively promotes home-school collaboration activities
and works closely with parents on their children's learning and
development. We organised parent-teacher meetings, workshops
and family days in various formats such as “How to Cultivate
Children's Reading Habits Seminar”, “Parent-Child Massage
Workshop’;, “Open Day”, “Christmas Celebration”, “Chinese New Year
Market”, “Sports Day”, to encourage parents and children to engage
in school life together. We also invited parents to school for “lesson
observation”, allowing them to have a better understanding of their

children's learning and work together for their children's growth.

HREEREHER KRB RS S E R
Children build the “Great Wall” together on “Open Day”
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Our children organise the “Chinese New Year Market”

Participation in “Parent-Child Massage Workshop”
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M5B IRFS Early Childhood Education Services

Our school was invited to perform at the “Sai Kung Children's Fun
Day” organised by the Sai Kung District Office and the PopWalk
Shopping Centre in Tseung Kwan O. Through these performances,
adults and children in the community gained a better understanding
of the diverse cultural characteristics of the performing arts.
Furthermore, these activities enhanced the connection between

children and the community, allowed students to confidently
demonstrate their knowledge, developing their potential and
interests.

The Education Bureau visited our kindergarten in March 2024 to
conduct a focus inspection and evaluation. The inspection report
highly praised of our school's curriculum coordination, schedule
arrangement, environment setting, teacher-student interaction,
teaching strategies, and evaluation methods. We will continue to
strive to provide a quality learning environment for every student.

MR EEEN S 2023-2024 FiR
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Play and Appreciate Parent-Child Experience Camp
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The Integrated Program (IP) provides personal training and
mentorship to eight groups, a total of 48 Special Educational Needs
(SEN) children, in our five nursery schools. Through individual
training and supervision based on the case management model,
SEN children can receive professional support in the early stages to
facilitate their future integration into mainstream education and
society.

Enhance communication and cooperation with parents and
encourage parental involvement in child training.

On 3 June 2023, we organised a “Play and Appreciate Parent-Child
Experience Camp” for 41 IP families at the Lady MacLehose Holiday
Village. The camp was designed by IP teachers who arranged six
different types of activities tailored to the abilities of the children.
These activities were conducted in an orienteering format, where
parents and their children worked together to complete them.
Shared experiences were built, allowing the parents to understand
and appreciate the abilities of their children.

Parents face different difficulties and pressures in raising children

with special needs. Our service collaborated with the school social
worker to organise gatherings for them from December 2023 to
March 2024. Through different content and activities, such as
making aroma stones, Pastel Nagomi Art, balm making, herbarium
bottles and personality tests, providing parents with some relaxing
and stress-relieving time amidst their busy lives.

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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Parent group - making aroma stones

The service promotes the Teaching Materials and Toys Borrowing
Scheme in all our nursery schools. We lent toys, teaching aids and
reference books to parents for their home-based training. Resources
were lent out 620 times during the year.

Our Association has always encouraged staff to pursue further
studies to enhance their professional knowledge and skills, thereby
improving service quality. Different trainings have been conducted
throughout the year.

On 28 March 2024, all IP teachers participated in the “Certificate in
Positive Handling System?® for Child Service with NFPS Breakaway &
Restraint Techniques”. This course helped teachers understand the
use of restraint or seclusion to deal with serious emotional
behavioural problems of SEN students, including what constitutes a
“reasonable method” to protect the safety of children and others in
emergencies based on the cases of the common law. Our teachers
learned about the legal considerations in dealing with challenging
behaviour of children and acquired practical and safe methods and
techniques to safeguard children and themselves.

In the past year, three IP teachers have studied professional
master's, bachelor's and principal courses respectively. Others also
participated in different types of further studies and seminars such
as board game therapy, sensory integration, LEGO®-Based Therapy,
to enhance their professional knowledge.

In the past year, we conducted eight sessions of lesson observations
and arranged IP teachers to share and discuss with each other in
group meetings afterwards. Through these interactions, we
enhance our teachers' mastery of teaching and student support
skills.

MR EEEN S 2023-2024 FiR
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Occasional Child Care Service
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Mission

To provide sessional, half-day and full-day basis child care services
for families with sudden engagements or various commitments,
including sickness, giving birth, escorting, home moving and carers
leaving Hong Kong, so as to avoid accidents caused by leaving
children alone at home.

Objectives

1. To support families with urgent or temporary needs

2. To provide quality care and education services for young children
in a safe environment

3. To build up healthy parenting and parent-child relationship through
various programs such as seminars, workshops and parent-child

activities.
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KE;E5F) Parent Activities

EFEHETT 21 ERBAERRFET > 5 759 ALFZH -
During the year, 21 parenting and parent-child activities were held with 759 participants.
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NEHERRFE Primary Education Services

Overview of Primary Education Services

NEYBIRFE NIRAMMTER » BEMFRRENERERERRFTRFERENSEEHRENE - AFERER 000 52

ERMNEHERT -

There are currently two schools, NTWJWA Leung Sing Tak Primary School and NTWJWA Christian Remembrance of
Grace Primary School, that provide primary education services for over 900 students this year.

ARF5 B AR

NSHBRBOTIEERDREALRE TURBE &
BN ZRBFRE  BRREFHERBESENER
FE WEERAERE -

A %55 L P
EERES
FERERRTRERA AN  BERSRERS
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BIRAIFFEER

Service Objectives

Upholding the mission of the organisation, “Rooted in Family, Built
on Virtue”, Primary Education Services aims to enhance students'
growth and whole person development in partnership with
parents.

Service Team
Incorporated Management Committee

Comprised of people from various sectors, our committee brings a
broad range of experience and perspectives. By visiting and
participating in school policymaking, the committee thoroughly
understands the situation of the schools and students and actively
promotes the sustainable development of the schools.
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Teaching Team

100% of our serving teachers are bachelor's degree holders, with
more than 30% of them holding postgraduate degrees and more
than 50% have received training in special education.

Development Direction and

Positioning of Services

» To promote teachers' professional development

« To cultivate students' sense of belonging towards their country

» To enhance support for learning diversity

¢ To promote STEAM education

» To improve facilities and the school environment

* To develop students' communication and interpersonal relationship skills
» To encourage student discover their own value

« To cultivate students' good character and behaviour

 To enable students to draw upon their knowledge to serve others
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FhsTHmiREMN B REEER
NTWJWA Leung Sing Tak Primary School

B 1981 £ 9 B » TBZ g, AR WL TB—ER T RIES  EE24EnE  BMNSTEEREE
BRE - CBEZEME  BERR  EEZABE -
NTWJWA Leung Sing Tak Primary School was founded in September 1981. It is guided by the school motto of “Loyalty,

Filial Piety, Diligence and Sincerity”, and the mission of “Quality Education for ALL”. Students are nurtured to develop
their moral, academic, and multiple intelligence so that they can develop their abilities and strengths to achieve
whole-person development.

BREEER School's Major Concerns

MmaaiREERE S5 To enhance catering for learner diversity

MERERER  RE - itE - HtEESE > A5 The school utilises on-campus construction and collaborates with
RELINEE  IRES TV EENKS  #RA24R families, other institutions as well as the community to organise
FNFBANFRERVERE - activities outside the classrooms. It also provides diversified learning

opportunities and enhances the development of knowledge and
skills of the students.

B STEAM (5 To Promote STEAM Education

Bialz% STEAM BEIistE » 128 STEAM #& An appropriate and beneficial STEAM learning environment has been
BRI R RBELRHESEETHRIE STEAM created at school. E-Learning supporting measures have been optimised.
2HUEE  TEERVEFEENERERR /5% In addition, more learning space and equipments are provided to support
SEEYNEFNEFEERE WEBEFEERE all-round STEAM learning. The E-Learning Development Team assisted
B BRI RSI R BESEHETETFEE © the school in planning and implementing e-learning in various subjects.
LN ERT T e Y P Class Structure and Teacher Credentials

REEILE 24 11 ) B4 NS 537 A AT 48 & - This year, there are 24 classes with 537 students, 48 teachers, two
TS FIFRBAE 248 o 2% BEMFELEM social workers and 24 non-teaching staff. 92% of our teaching staff
Erh 38% BMELTEN 0 2% BT 66% B are bachelor's degree holders while 38% have master's degrees. 2%
SR EE o are doctorate degree holders and 65% have received special education

training.
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INEHERRFE Primary Education Services

Learning and Teaching

Our school values the diverse potential of students and makes good
use of learning time to cultivate students' basic knowledge in varied
academic areas. The afternoon class time has been optimised by
incorporating “Integrated Humanities Classes”, “Enrichment and
Extension Classes” as well as “Interdisciplinary Classes” . This allows
students to apply the knowledge they learnt, combining reading,
scientific exploration activities and hands-on activities to naturally
connect the knowledge with their daily lives. Students can also step
out of the classrooms to participate in different community visits,
adventure activities and exchange programs, broadening their
horizons and enriching themselves.

Learning Support

“Learning Rooms” have been set up during two recesses to take care
of students with learning difficulties. After-school tutorial classes are
also available to support students with academic challenges. The
school has also arranged teaching assistants to assist students with
special educational needs. To cater for the diverse needs of the
students, the school has participated in various programs such as
“Whole School Approach to Providing Tiered Support for Students
with ASD” , “Jockey Club Autism Support Network” and “Student
Mental Health Support Scheme”.

To ensure smooth transition between kindergarten and primary
school, the school arranged four classroom assistants to take care P.1
students. Furthermore, “Football Potential”, “Happy Basketball” and
“Music Therapy” groups are held on Saturdays to assist and support

students with special educational needs through sports and arts.

MAERETE 2023-2024 FR @



R EmE

SR BIIESIZRIZECHIERER BRI
EEGENEIIREES - SREEIER /%
EMIRMEZERVBE TR - X2F » HMEZTH
BRI RO 2E (R TR R BRERI I 1Al - 18N T /g
BEHIRINTIZATRIERITRAN

BEER

RTECERIFIRERERE AFESRIFHIES
YR RIEEE TEnglish Reading Tree Room, > 3E[E
En i/ NEREE —EFENRES BEERE S -

B4 REEIH AR _“7 TEA/, HMEE T
Te1TENp R Fas o EIEELIT bRt EAMthPIEAE o

& AFEEBESETRESNMIRE  ENNESE

fEfS 8 Bhamit - MEISZEF IR EEARSE -
ERIFARASERETR - BEERHA 18
EREREETESRYE  THES—ERSH
FEESRD ©

INEHERRFE Primary Education Services

School-based Teacher Training

The school provides guidance to our teachers to attend training
courses based on their professional disciplines every school year.
Professional lectures and workshops are provided for teachers in
response to the school's major concerns. In this school year, teachers
received training in the preparation of External School Review and
the skills of class observations, which helped middle management in
the school have a better understanding of the External School
Review.

Campus Improvement

In order to create a better English reading environment, an “English
Reading Tree Room” has been established in the Art Gallery. A
comfortable, quiet and relaxing place is provided for students to
participate in English reading activities during recesses.

A “Nature Corner” has also been set up at the Hall of Success.
Students can have a chance to meet up close with the reptiles and
the beetles at recess time.

The school library has carried out renovation works and the new
library has been launched in mid-August. The new library will not
only increase the library collection of books but also enhance the
reading space for students. With the novel design, it can be a
classroom for library lessons or a stage for storytelling after
transformation.
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INEHERRFE Primary Education Services

Student Personal Growth and Further Education

More than 30% of our P.6 graduates were allocated to English
secondary schools this year.

Life-wide Learning Activities and Exchanges

There were three exchange programs this year, including the “An
Exploration into the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area
Cities - Planning and Technology Development in Dongguan” in
November, the “Mainland Exchange Program for Junior Secondary
and Upper Primary Students (History and Culture Series in
Shanghai)” in March, the “Sister School Scheme with Junwei Primary
School, Huadu District, Guangzhou”.

External Competitions

The school is committed to supporting the development of sports
and we reaped great harvests in sports competitions this year. The
Badminton Team won the Boys' Team Championship in the “Tai Po
District Inter-School Badminton Competition 2023-2024” . In the
Boy's Individual Event, which each school could only send two
players to participate, won the Championship and the First
Runner-up awards. The Table Tennis Team performed even better,
sweeping the awards in the “Tai Po District Inter-School Table Tennis
Team Competition 2023-2024”, and winning both the Boys' and Girls'
Team Championships. As for the Dodgeball Team, the Boys' Team
won the 3rd runner-up in the “Hong Kong Inter-School Dodgeball
(Single-ball Style) Championships 2024 (New Territories East)”, while
the Girls' Team went one step further, winning the Championship in
the same competition. After advancing to the Hong Kong-wide
competition, the Girls' Team won the third place in the Primary
School Girls' Category of “Hong Kong Inter-School Dodgeball
(Single-ball Style) Elite Championships 2024”.
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INEHERRFE Primary Education Services
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NTWJWA Christian Remembrance of Grace

Primary School
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Accomplish a Sparkling Life
“Contribute- Love” Visual Arts Exhibition

Avisual arts exhibition with the theme, “Contribute - Love” was held
at the Tai Po Arts Centre in June this year. The exhibition featured
the works of students, parents and teachers which expressed their
love and contribution to our school, families, communities, Hong
Kong and our country through visual arts. There is also a Pastel
Nagomi Art Creation Activity featuring “Bring Home Love.”

Students' Achievement

Our school dance teams, including Children's Dance Team, Chinese
Dance Team and Trio Dance Team, participated in the 60th Schools
Dance Festival this year, winning four Merit Awards for their “The
Ring of the Miao Bell” (Miaozu), “Happy Children at Mountain She”
(the She tribe dance), “Jolly Yi” and “Joy at Mountain Yi” (the Yi tribe
dances). Meanwhile, we stood out from the 350 primary schools
participating in Chinese Dance Competitions and won the Group
Merit Award of Chinese Dance (Primary Section) at the fifth place.
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INEHERARFE Primary Education Services

Both our Stage Troupe and the English Drama Team participated in
the Hong Kong School Drama Festival. With the play “Fat Guy

1”

Rescue Reality Show!”, they won the Outstanding Stage Effects
Award, Outstanding Cooperation Award and Commendable Overall
Performance Award. In addition, two students won the Outstanding
Performer Award. The English Drama Team also won the Outstanding
Cooperation Award, Outstanding Stage Effects Award and

Commendable Overall Performance Award for its play “My Fairies”.

The Performance Fiesta and Learning Journey
Exhibition

The Performance Fiesta and Learning Journey Exhibition take
place at the end of June every year. During the events, students'
works and achievements in different domains and curriculums are
showcased.

Diversified Music Events

Same as previous years, Christmas Busking and the “Stars of Music
Program” are held to foster students’ interest in music. The “Drum
Battle” was introduced this year. The activity filled with captivating
rhythms and passionate beat of drumming which enhance the
atmosphere and bring the teachers and students to another new
realm of music. It also provides a unique opportunity for students
witness the shining talents of their peers on stage.

“I Can Do It - Showmanship”

“I Can Do It - Showmanship” was launched to encourage students
to challenge themselves and pursue their excellence through a
series of activities such as Speed Stacking Challenges, Typing
Competition and Putonghua Phonology Competition.
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EEMBIRIZ Life Planning Curriculum

bR T BRRER BRI NEEIMIREEAEFE In addition to self-awareness and development, this year we have
FE FRE  HPABLAEFARNRREE & also enhanced students’ career explorations. These explorations
FRITEES  THRIRTIRAIERINESE o could help students to understand their constraints and choices

about their own life planning.

Tl

| ‘ ! : ‘ ‘ “ |
oy Lo ( 1 e

EREEEE > MEZTHED » (BE2E Make good use of lesson time to organise diversified

SAEE learning activities to promote students' whole-person

) o \ development
TFREFETEREY 4AHHE  EQHBE
SBRSEEE) « Explorer B2 « EEMRELES) « hEE Cross-curricular Learning Activities, Life Education, Positive
(GES) « PHRES  [RREZ BRI AES= Education, Theme-based Reading, Explorer Program, Life Planning
or Program, Chinese Cultural Activities, Classroom Management

Activities, Service Learning and Confucian Cultural Exchange and
various sharing sessions were conducted in the afternoon sessions.
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STEAM # & STEAM Education
IRBAEZNTAEEEERNAIRERE S R Hibik Our students participated in the Innovation Fairs organised by
BINEIT STEAM BRI different organisations and had exchanges with our sister school on

STEAM education.

HHI WA

KRE1E Home-School Partnership

REERYSEN 7 ZERFIEE IG5 This year, the PTA organised a number of parent-child activities and
TLREES)  BESERNSERE  BINRTFE assisted the school in organising large-scale activities to broaden
BREE - students' learning experiences and increase parent-child interactions.
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Overview of Social Services
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In line with our organisation's mission, “Rooted in Family, Built on
Virtue”, the Social Service Division is committed to providing
appropriate and in-depth services to the elderly and their families in
need. There are two service units under the Social Service Division,
namely Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre and Community Care
Centre for the Elderly. Through community support services,
including home-based and centre-based services, we provide a
variety of physical, psycho, social and spiritual activities for both the
frail and healthy elderly and their carers in Hung Shui Kiu. We aim to
assist our service users live a meaningful and fulfilling later lives

through different activities.

The aging population poses significant challenges to the global
economy, social resources, healthcare, long-term care, and welfare.
In view of the increasing demand for elderly services in Hong Kong
and the complex and changing needs of service users, the Social
Service Division will strive to enhance the quality of the services and
actively collaborate with different groups, including non-governmental
organisations, district organisations, Elder Academy, primary and
secondary schools, tertiary institutions, and government departments
in the district. We aim to provide more diversified and high-quality

services to our service users through diversified resource collaboration.
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Service Statistics

HEREMZHO
Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

LEBEIRIBAR SEFHHEAR
No. of attendance of No. of attendance of
drop-in service activities held throughout the year

BETAY

No. of volunteers

8
32,076
iy
104
iy
859

REHEREEREE RO

BEAH

No. of members

Community Care Centre for the Elderly

SFERIEHHB
No. of activities held
throughout the year

HTIRFEERAE
No. of users of
social work service

HERORBEAR
No. of attendance of
day care centre service

I R 1E R R e IR AR FE BT X
Total service hours of
home-based rehabilitation
and nursing services

Bl F BREE R ST R AR TS B 2N
Total service hours of home-based care
and support services
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Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre
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Service Mission

Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre continues to adhere to the
mission of “Rooted in Family, Built on Virtue” to provide appropriate
services to those in need. This year, the centre focuses on providing a
wide range of services to the elderly and their carers, including
enhancing members' awareness of physical health, strengthening
cognitive-friendly promotion, intensifying rural publicity and
developing rural services, developing the young old service and
offering diversified and innovative activities for the young elderly,
maintaining external cooperation to broaden resources for
diversified services.

Service Team

Our team is composed of social workers, welfare workers, program
workers, clerical assistant, and workman. In addition, the Social
Welfare Department allocated additional funding in October 2023 to
recruit an additional social work assistant. A well-staffed and
professional team will enable the centre to diversify its services and
enhance its quality. Moreover, the centre regularly organises internal
training and encourages colleagues to participate in external training
courses to improve their knowledge and skills, ensuring more
professional and up-to-date services. To strengthen cooperation and
communication among the team, the centre organises team building
workshops, allowing team members to understand each other better
and collaborate effectively in their work, fostering mutual trust and
support.

Service Overview
Increase Members' Awareness on Physical Health

The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust has allocated $780,000 to
the centre to launch the two-year “Jockey Club Community eHealth
Care Project”. It adopts an innovative approach to promote
preventive healthcare among the elderly and empower them in
health management. The program recruits people aged 55 or above
who are interested in living a healthy lifestyle since July 2023.
eHealth participants can login to the e-health stations with their
smart cards to conduct health measurement (blood pressure, height,
weight, body composition analysis) so as to understand their health
conditions. The health data are transferred through cloud technology
for real-time monitoring and analysis. In addition, the project also
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EEEREA®R
ong Kong Housing Authority

gk

Hung Fuk Estate

contains various health promotion activities such as exercise, healthy
diet, cognitive health, mental wellbeing, and social psychological
health which are designed to enhance the quality of life for the
participants.

)

1% 8

LAU SHUIHEUNG COUNTRY TRAIL

This year, the centre has recruited 260 participants, total of 1,552

attendance, and held 117 activities. The project also collaborated
with local community, such as co-organise the “Nurse and You”
activity with Yuen Long District Health Centre. The nurse measured
blood pressure, recorded height, weight and waist circumference for
the participants, and provided health consultation for the members.
Half-day excursion is also arranged every quarter for participants to
visit the Yuen Long District Health Centre and learn about the
primary medical resources in the district.

Strengthen Dementia-Friendly Services

This year, the centre's dementia services focus on prevention, early
identification, and supporting the elderly with dementia and their
carers. The centre provides preliminary cognitive assessment,
consultation, and service referral to the elderly in need. When the
elderly is found to have signs of dementia, our staff will provide them
diverse groups and activities, such as reminiscence therapy, music
therapy and board game training to train and maintain their
cognitive abilities. Promoting dementia-friendly community is also
one of the centre's dementia service priorities this year. In addition
to conducting dementia-friendly training for the property management
staff of Hung Fuk Estate, information booths were setup for delivering
information about dementia, raising public awareness and identifying

RRRETE 2023-2024 FK @
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Enhance and Develop Rural Services

The centre maintains a cooperative relationship with representatives
from nearby villages. Information sites are established in some
villages in order to provide up-to-date information of the centre. As a
result, elderly and carers living in villages can easily access information
about social welfare and are able to contact the centre when needed.
This year, the centre has also made use of street stations, village
festivals activities and health check-ups to reach out to more people
in the rural area and promote various support services. By enhancing
the understanding of elderly in villages about our services, we aim to
establish a rural mutual aid network so that service users in the
village can receive timely support.

Expand Services for Young Elderly

Responding to the trend to serving the third-age population in
Hong Kong, the centre actively promotes services for the young
elderly. In addition to organising activities for people aged 55 to 59,
the centre intensifies local publicity efforts. The centre cooperates
with different stakeholders and government departments to reach
out and identify young elderly in need through different ways, such
as distributing promotional leaflets in mailboxes within Hung Fuk
Estate, setting up street stations, and placing leaflets and posters in
District Councilor's Office and Hung Shui Kiu Transitional Housing
Project - Yan Oi House.

To address the learning and developmental needs of the young
elderly, the centre has designed special activities such as “Creative
Coffee Art 2D Painting Workshop”, “Safety Three Treasures”
retirement planning talks and various trendy activities, recreational
classes and groups. Unlike traditional activities in elderly centres,
these activities focus more on cultivating the interests of young
elderly and developing their abilities, enabling the young elderly
who are about to retire to make good use of their post-retirement

time and create a vibrant second half of their lives.
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Maintain External Cooperation and Expand Resources to
Provide Diversified Services

In the past year, the centre has continued to maintain good
collaborations with friendly units in the district and organised
various special activities. In 2023, our centre served as a case
organisation for the SE Program @ Yuen Long - 4th “Youth Power
Community Innovation” Case Competition held by the Social
Enterprise Summit. A total of seven teams from four secondary
schools in Yuen Long District participated in the competition. The
students applied design thinking to tailor innovative ideas for the
centre and made suggestions for improvement and development of
the centre. During February to March 2024, the centre successfully
introduced the design thinking plan of the winning team to optimise
existing services. In addition to bring new service ideas to the centre,
the program also allowed students to learn about the operations of
non-profit organisations through competitions, creating a win-win
situation and effectively promoting harmony across generations. In
November 2023, the centre cooperated with the School of Nursing at
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University to use the “Electronic
Painting and Peer Support” (EPPS) platform, enabling carers to learn
painting, communicate with each other and relieve stress. In 2024,
the centre continues to organise activities with Pak Shung Elder
Academy and Wofoo Community Hub Elder Academy. At the same
time, we will continue to explore community resources and bring
more diversified and innovative services to the centre through
different types of cooperation.

Future Development

The centre carries decades of community relations and service
experience in Hung Shui Kiu and will celebrate its 30th anniversary in
2024. At the same time, we are going to face major changes due to
the new planning and development in the district. In the coming
years, numerous new residential buildings and mass railway
transportation projects will be completed, bringing various
opportunities to the area. The centre will proactively strengthen its
positioning, develop regional networks, and actively expand various
resources. For example, this year we received a grant of $100,000
from the Helena May Hong Kong to implement a project aimed at
supporting female carers in need, providing different types of carer
training and home support services. The centre will develop steadily,
preparing to embrace new opportunities.
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Service Mission

Our Centre is a Recognised Service Provider under the “Community
Care Service Voucher Scheme for the Elderly” of the Social Welfare
Department. Based on the concepts of “Ageing in Place” and
“Continuum of Care”, we provide professional services for the
elderly in need so that they can receive whole-person care and
continue to live in the community harmoniously.

Service Focus

To allow more flexibility for our service users, we provide three
service modes including Centre-based, Home-based, and a mixed
mode of Centre-based and Home-based. The elderly and their
families can choose the appropriate service mode according to their
unique needs.

The Centre-based services mainly include day care service for the
elderly. They can receive professional and appropriate rehabilitation
and nursing services in a comfortable environment. Our centre is
equipped with gerontechnology products which provide a variety of
interesting activities for the elderly to maintain their social life.
Home-based services include home-based nursing or rehabilitation
exercise services provided by professionals, personal care, rehabilitation
and cognitive training, escort and household cleaning provided by
health workers or care workers. In addition, we have also established
a supportive network for the carers, organised stress-relief activities
to relieve their caring stresses, and then took good care of the
elderly at home.
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Service Overview

Based on the situation and needs of the service users, our centre
regularly arranges outdoor activities for the elderly, such as Ocean
Park visit and spring lunch, allowing them to have a happy time
going out together. The response was very positive. As reflected
from the service statistics, users of Home-based services mostly
requested for rehabilitation exercise and home care services.

Future development

With the regularisation of the “Community Care Service Voucher
Scheme for the Elderly” on 1 September 2023, the number of service
vouchers so as the potential service users will be increased. Our
centre will continue to partner with the Pak U Neighbourhood
Elderly Centre to strengthen the awareness of the elderly and their
carers on the importance of self-health management and take
preventive measures to maintain physical, mental, and spiritual
health. Moreover, the centre launched the paid services since
November 2023, allowing service users to purchase additional day
care or home-based services based on their needs and financial
situation.
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Audited Financial Statements

E S. Li & Co.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1001 Admiralty Centre Tower 1, 18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
Tel : 2861 1717  Fax : 2865 6828 Email : mail@fslic&com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS OF
NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN & JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong and limited by guarantee)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Limited (the
"Association") set out on pages 7 to 24, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st March 2024, and the
statement of comprehensive income and expenditure, the statement of changes in funds and the cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Association as at 31st March
2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard for Private Entities ("HKFRSPE") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants ("the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The executive committee members are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the report of the executive committee members on pages 1 to 4, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Executive Committee Members and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The executive committee members are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with the HKFRSPE issued by the HKICPA and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the executive committee members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the executive committee members are responsible for assessing the Association's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the executive committee members either intend to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Association's financial reporting process.

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the andit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the executive committee members.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive committee members' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Association's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Fs(UCL .

F.S.Li & Co.
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd October 2024.
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

INCOME

Government grants and subventions net of refund
Unit subsidies for kindergartens
Others

School fees

Other donation received

Interest income

Meal income

Membership fee received

Program income

Profit on sales of inventories

Income from Employment support scheme

Income from Quality Education Fund

Other income

Less: EXPENDITURE
Elderly services, integrated programme and occasional
child care services expenses

Nursery school operation expenses
Other administrative expenses (including program expenditure)

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR (Note 4)

@ New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
28,648,150 29,030,409
23,693,812 20,598,422
8,309,640 7,635,790
668,903 237,179
165,481 32,554
2,667,522 2,485,900
95,105 82,500
1,448,321 1,472,004
12,639 25,377
- 534,202
267,473 247,500
693,857 605,569
66,670,903 62,987,406
14,557,939 13,540,359
52,864,880 51,759,353
298,836 1,020,203
67,721,655 66,319,915
(1,050,752) (3,332,509)
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 318T MARCH 2024

Note 2024 2023
HK$ HK$ HKS$
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 2,803,182 4,741,571
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 75,835 100,068
Account receivables 827,759 1,384,758
Utility deposits 169,164 155,126
Prepayments 145,513 40,390
Bank and cash balances 43,505,529 42,840,434
44,723,800 44,520,776
Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES
Receipts in advance 816,448 1,120,487
Account payables and accruals 418,502 799,076
1,234,950 1,919,563
NET CURRENT ASSETS 43,488,850 42,601,213
NET ASSETS 46,292,032 47,342,784
representing:
RESERVES
Accumulated surplus 8 28,587,151 30,125,209
Accumulated fund 9 34,405 34,405
Nursery schools reserves and surpluses 10 7,234,101 7,213,384
Nursery schools special purpose reserve 11 61,049 -
Student activity support fund 12 370,001 -
SSD reserves and surpluses 13 9,073,536 9,004,997
School donation reserve 21 931,789 964,789

46,292,032 47,342,784

The financial statements on pages 7 to 24 were approved and authorized for issue by
the executive committee on 23rd October 2024.

UL (oI

Lee Christina Maisenne Tok Yean Ting Karen
Chairperson Executive committee member
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit for the year (1,050,752) (3,332,509)
Adjustments for:
Interest income (165,481) (32,554)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 3,059,134 2,843,030
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,275 -
Operating surplus/(deficit) before working capital changes 1,844,176 (522,033)
Decrease in inventories 24,233 25,101
Decrease in account receivables 556,999 147,968
Increase in utility deposits (14,038) (5,034)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepayments (105,123) 52,243
Decrease in receipts in advance (304,039) (323,940)
Decrease in account payables and accruals (380,574) (33,834)
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,621,634 (659,529)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 165,481 32,554
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,122,020) (3,988,761)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (956,539) (3,956,207)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 665,095 (4,615,736)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 42,840,434 47,456,170
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 43,505,529 42,840,434
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 43,505,529 42,840,434
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

1. General

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Limited (the "Association") was
incorporated in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance and is limited by guarantee. The liability
of each member is limited to the extent of an amount not exceeding the sum of HK$10. It is an
approved charitable institution and is exempt from tax under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance. Its registered office and principal place of operation are at Room 401, 3/F., Yuen Long
Town Hall, 4 Tai Yuk Road, Yuen Long, New Territories. The Association is engaged to promote,
assist, encourage, improve, maintain or carry on any social welfare activities, family planning,
recreation and the general health among the women, children and elderly in New Territories of
HKSAR.

2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standard for Private Entities ("HKFRSPE") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants ("HKICPA"), and comply with the applicable requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting and on the basis that
the Association is a going concern. In addition, historical cost convention is adopted.

3.  Summary of significant accounting policies

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Association and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized as follows:

(a) Revenue recognition

(1)  Government grants and subventions other than grants received for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment are recognized as income when no specified future performance
conditions are imposed; if there are conditions, it is recognized as income when conditions
are fulfilled.

(i) School fees and meal income are recognized when the right to receive the income is

established.

(iii) Program income are recognized upon provision of service.

(iv) Donations and membership fee are recognized when the funds have been received.

(v) Sales of inventories are recognized upon delivery of goods.

(vi) Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(vil) Government grants received for acquisition of property, plant and equipment are recognized
over the period when the related assets are depreciated.

(b) Functional and presentation currency

The Association's functional and presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars.

@ New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢c) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
and deposits with banks within 3 months to maturity from date of deposit.

(d) Impairment losses

At the end of each reporting period, property, plant and equipment are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is an
indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of
related assets) is estimated and compared with its carrying amount. If estimated recoverable
amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an
impairment is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

Similarly, at the end of each reporting period, inventories are assessed for impairment by
comparing the carrying amount of each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its
selling price less costs to complete and sell. If an item of inventory (or group of similar items)
is impaired, its carrying amount is reduced to selling price less costs to complete and sell, and
an impairment loss is recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of
related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess
of the amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset (or group of related assets) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated impairment loss over their estimated useful lives using a straight line basis at the
following rates:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 25%
Computer hardware and software 25%
Leasehold improvements 33%

(f) Assets held under operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over the lease periods.

WRUIRRREHE 2023-2024 FiR
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

3. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a first
in first out basis. Net realizable value represents estimated selling price less all direct selling
costs.

(h) Provisions

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Association has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

(i) Account receivables and deposits

Account receivables and deposits are initially recognized at transaction price and at the end of
reporting period are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts,

unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case the receivables and deposits
are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts. A provision for impairment
of receivables and deposits is made when there is objective evidence that the Association will

not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables and

deposits.

(j) Account payables and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognized at transaction price and at the end of
reporting period are stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(k) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, related party includes a person and an entity as
defined below:

(A) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Association if that
person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Association;
(i) has significant influence over the Association; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Association or of a parent of the
Association.

(B) An entity is related to the Association if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Association are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Related parties (continued)

(B) (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Association or an entity related to the Association. If the Association is itself

such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the Association.
(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (A).

(vil) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Association or to the Association's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Deficit for the year

Deficit for the year is stated after charging the following items:

2024 2023
HKS HKS$
Staff costs
Salaries and allowances 46,269,598 47,201,707
Long service payments 38,580 -
Provident fund contributions 3,054,755 2,862,595
49,362,933 50,064,302
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,059,134 2,843,030
Provision for bad-debt on school fees 924 198,758
Inventories written-off 4,859 4,162
Auditor's remuneration 145,300 119,800
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,275 -
Rent paid under operating leases 1,433,976 1,433,976

Executive committee members' remuneration and other interests

The executive committee members during the year did not receive and would not receive any
benefits or did not have an interest in respect of the items as mentioned in Section 383(a), (b), (c),
(d) and (e) of the Companies Ordinance (2023 - Nil).

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties for making available the services of
a person as executive committee member or in any other capacity while executive committee

member (2023 - Nil).
i RIRTREAE 2023-2024 £4R @
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6. Taxation

NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

The Association is a charitable institution and is exempt from Hong Kong profits tax, subject to certain
conditions to be fulfilled in relation to the trade or business carried on by the Association, under
Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance (2023 - Same).

7. Property, plant and equipment

Cost
At 31st March 2023

Additions
Disposals

At 31st March 2024

Accumulated depreciation
At 31st March 2023

Charge for the year
Written-back on disposals

At 31st March 2024

Net book value

At 31st March 2024

At 31st March 2023

Furniture, Computer
fixtures hardware Leasehold
and equipment and software improvements Total

HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$

6,368,991 1,202,596 12,392,524 19,964,111
265,877 675,778 180,365 1,122,020
(67,280) (20,023) (59,120) (146,423)

6,567,588 1,858,351 12,513,769 20,939,708

5,520,133 691,580 9,010,827 15,222,540
410,488 375,366 2,273,280 3,059,134
(67,279) (18,749) (59,120) (145,148)

5,863,342 1,048,197 11,224,987 18,136,526
704,246 810,154 1,288,782 2,803,182
848,858 511,016 3,381,697 4,741,571
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

Accumulated surplus

At beginning of the year

Deficit for the year

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year attributable to other reserves
Nursery schools reserves and surpluses (Note 10)
Nursery schools special purpose reserve (Note 11)
Student activity support fund (Note 12)
Block Grant reserve (Note 14)
Lump Sum Grant reserve (Note 15)
Social Welfare Subvention Surpluses Account (Note 17)
Wi-Fi project grant reserve (Note 18)
Social welfare developmemt fund reserve (Note 19)
Time-limited posts reserve (Note 20)
School donation reserve (Note 21)

Transferred to nursery schools special purpose reserve (Note 11)

At end of the year

Accumulated fund

At beginning and end of year

Nursery schools reserves and surpluses

Daytime nursery surplus
At beginning of the year

Interest income

Surplus for the year

At end of the year

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
30,125,209 33,217,091
(1,050,752)  (3,332,509)
(20,717) -
18,951 -
(370,001) -
272,564 (176,204)
(328,603) 426,615
(17,118) 125,918
4,032 (4,989)
(58) (13)
644 1,900
33,000 (132,600)
(80,000) -
28,587,151 30,125,209
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
34,405 34,405
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
7,213,384 7,213,384
20,717 -
20,717 -
7,234,101 7,213,384

The surplus represents the retained surplus from nursery schools before joining the Pre-primary

Education Voucher Scheme.
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11. Nursery schools special purpose reserve

At beginning of the year
Transfer from accumulated surplus

Expenditure

Deficit for the year

At end of the year

NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

2024 2023
HKS HKS$

80,000 -

(18,951) -

(18,951) -

61,049 -

Nursery schools special purpose reserve is set up for enhancing the early childhood education

services.

12. Student activity support fund

At beginning of the year
Donation income

Surplus for the year

At end of the year

2024 2023

HKS$ HKS$
370,001 -
370,001 -
370,001 -

As specified by the donor, student activity support fund is set up for subsidizing the eligible students

to participate in learning activities.

13. SSD reserves and surpluses

Block grant reserve (Note 14)

Lump sum grant reserve (Note 15)

Provident fund reserve (Note 16)

Social welfare subvention surpluses account (Note 17)
Wi-Fi project grant reserve (Note 18)

Social welfare developmemt fund reserve (Note 19)
Time-limited posts reserve (Note 20)

2024 2023

HKS$ HKS$
716,288 988,852
5,640,455 5,479,768
2,630,182 2,462,266
49,512 32,394
29,408 33,440
7,691 7,633
- 644
9,073,536 9,004,997

@ New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Annual Report 2023-2024
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

14. Block grant reserve

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
At beginning of the year 988,852 812,648
Grant income - 174,000
Interest income 7,785 2,204
Recognized expenditure
Furniture and equipment (280,349) -
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year (272,564) 176,204
At end of the year 716,288 988,852

The reserve represents the accumulated surplus of furniture and equipment replenishment and
minor works block grant from government.

15. Lump sum grant reserve

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
At beginning of the year 5,479,768 6,039,334
Income (Note 24) 13,452,614 11,810,431
Expenditure (Note 24) (13,124,011) (11,756,752)
Refund to Government - (480,294)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 328,603 (426,615)
Provident fund surplus transferred from/(to)
provident fund reserve (Note 16)
Snapshot staff (10,292) 25,885
6.8% and other posts (157,624) (158,836)
160,687 (559,566)
At end of the year 5,640,455 5,479,768

The reserve represents the accumulated surpluses of lump sum grant from the Government of the
HKSAR.
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15. Lump sum grant reserve (continued)

Reconciliation of balances presented in Annual Financial Report:

NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

Cash Per Annual
Per Financial adjustment Financial
Statements for the year Report
HKS$ HKS$ HK$
Total Income 13,452,614 (48,577) 13,404,037
Total Expenditure (13,124,011) 16,415 (13,107,596)
Surplus for the year 328,603 296,441
Less:  Surplus of Provident Fund (167,916) 4,048 (163,868)
160,687 132,573
16. Provident fund reserve
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Snapshot staff
At beginning of the year (29,923) (4,038)
Provident fund surplus/(deficit) for the year
transferred from/(to) lump sum grant 6,244 (25,885)
Additional subvention for previous year 4,048 -
At end of the year (19,631) (29,923)
6.8% and other posts
At beginning of the year 2,492,189 2,333,353
Provident fund surplus for the year
transferred from lump sum grant 157,624 158,836
At end of the year 2,649,813 2,492,189
2,630,182 2,462,266

The reserve represents the accumulated surpluses of provident fund grant from the Government of the

HKSAR.
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

17. Social welfare subvention surpluses account

2024 2023

HKS$ HK$
At beginning of the year 32,394 158,312
Income (Note 24) 337,571 304,583
Expenditure (Note 24) (305,085) (304,215)
Refunded to government (15,368) (126,286)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 17,118 (125,918)
At end of the year 49,512 32,394

18. Wi-Fi project grant reserve

Income and Expenditure Statement for
Lotteries Fund Experimental Project(s) of limited duration

For the Year Ended 31st March 2024

Wi-Fi Project
35141-837-4510-0000

Completion Date
31st December 2023
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Income
Lotteries Fund Grant - 12,000
Total Income (A) - 12,000
Expenditure
Other Expenditure: (i) Operating expenses 4,032 7,011
Total Expenditure (B) 4,032 7,011
Surplus/ (deficit) for the Year (C) = (A) — (B) (4,032) 4,989
Add: Cumulated Income B/F (D) 70,000 58,000
Cumulated Expenditure B/F (E) 36,560 29,549
Cumulated surplus/ (deficit) B/F (F) = (D) — (E) 33,440 28,451
Cumulated surplus C/F (G) = (C) + (F) 29,408 33,440

The grant is from Lotteries Fund for provision of Wi-Fi service in the Elderly centre.
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

19. Social welfare development fund reserve

2024 2023
HK$ HKS
Phase 3
At beginning of the year 7,633 7,620
Interest income during the year 58 13
Surplus for the year 58 13
At end of the year 7,691 7,633
20. Time-limited posts reserve
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
Job Creation Scheme 2.0
At beginning of the year 644 2,544
Income during the year - 65,400
Expenditure during the year - (67,300)
Refunded to government (644) -
Deficit for the year (644) (1,900)
Balance at end of the year - 644
21. School donation reserve
2024 2023
HKS$ HKS$
At beginning of the year 964,789 832,189
Donation income - 200,000
Expenditure (33,000) (67,400)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year (33,000) 132,600
Balance at end of the year 931,789 964,789

As specified by the donor, the reserve is set up for contribution to cost in establishment of schools

specified by the donor.
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

22. Categories of financial assets and liabilities

2024 2023
HK$ HKS$
Financial assets
Current assets - at (amortized) cost:
Account receivables 827,759 1,384,758
Utility deposits 169,164 155,126
Bank and cash balances 43,505,529 42,840,434

44,502,452 44,380,318

Financial liabilities

Current liabilities - at (amortized) cost:
Account payables and accruals 418,502 799,076

23. Commitments under operating leases

At the end of reporting period, the Association had the following future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and building:

2024 2023
HKS HKS
Not later than one year 379,550 228,495

RRTRETE 2023-2024 FK @



. Ffigk Appendix

24. Analysis of Lump Sum Grant and Social Welfare Subvention Surpluses Account

NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

For the year ended 31st March 2024

Social Welfare Subvention
Surpluses Account

Lump Sum Rent and Central
Grant rates items Sub-total Total
HKS HKS$S HKS HKS HK$
INCOME
Lump Sum Grant 12,768,592 - - - 12,768,592
Rent and rates - 290,348 - 290,348 290,348
Central items - - 47,223 47,223 47,223
Fee income 175,245 - - - 175,245
Other income 461,198 - - - 461,198
Interest received 47,579 - - - 47,579
13,452,614 290,348 47,223 337,571 13,790,185
EXPENDITURE
Personal emoluments 10,914,286 - - - 10,914,286
Rent and rates - 290,085 - 290,085 290,085
Central items expenses - - 15,000 15,000 15,000
Other charges 2,209,725 - - - 2,209,725
(13,124,011) (290,085) (15,000) (305,085)  (13,429,096)
Surplus for the year 328,603 263 32,223 32,486 361,089
Transfer to Provident fund
reserve (167,916) - - - (167,916)
160,687 263 32,223 32,486 193,173
Surplus/(Deficit) brought forward 5,479,768 (2,410) 34,804 32,394 5,512,162
5,640,455 (2,147) 67,027 64,880 5,705,335
Less: Refunded to Government,
net - (589) (14,779) (15,368) (15,368)
Surplus/(Deficit) carried forward 5,640,455 (2,736) 52,248 49,512 5,689,967
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &

JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2024

24. Analysis of Lump Sum Grant and Social Welfare Subvention Surpluses Account (continued)

For the year ended 31st March 2023

Social Welfare Subvention
Surpluses Account

Lump Sum Rent and Central
Grant rates items Sub-total Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
INCOME
Lump Sum Grant 11,519,889 - - - 11,519,889
Rent and rates - 278,348 - 278,348 278,348
Central items - - 26,235 26,235 26,235
Fee income 157,615 - - - 157,615
Other income 118,973 - - - 118,973
Interest received 13,954 - - - 13,954
11,810,431 278,348 26,235 304,583 12,115,014
EXPENDITURE
Personal emoluments 10,129,145 - - - 10,129,145
Rent and rates - 277,759 - 277,759 277,759
Central items expenses - - 26,456 26,456 26,456
Other charges 1,627,607 - - - 1,627,607
(11,756,752)  (277,759)  (26,456) (304,215)  (12,060,967)
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 53,679 589 (221) 368 54,047
Transfer to Provident fund
reserve (132,951) - - - (132,951)
(79,272) 589 (221) 368 (78,904)
Surplus brought forward 6,039,334 8,940 149,372 158,312 6,197,646
5,960,062 9,529 149,151 158,680 6,118,742
Less: Refunded to Government,
net (480,294) (11,939) (114,347) (126,286) (606,580)
Surplus/(Deficit) carried forward 5,479,768 (2,410) 34,804 32,394 5,512,162
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PRFZEEi[4AE
Service Units

MR R
Head Office

ik (R ITRAIE B 4 TR EE 401 E

Address  :Room 401, Yuen Long Town Hall, 4 Tai Yuk Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
TiE Tel  :(852) 24770104

f8E Fax  :(852) 2479 4533

BE Email : ntwjwa@ntwjwa.org.hk

INBHERS
Primary Education Services

TRIRRENEREEER

NTWJWA Leung Sing Tak Primary School

ik TR KA TR

Address  :TaiYuen Estate Phase Il, Tai Po (Area 16), Tai Po, N.T.
BT Tel 1 (852) 2664 1223

fEE Fax  :(852) 26651012

EE Email : info@taipolst.edu.hk

MR mmREMN ERERE RS

NTWJWA Christian Remembrance of Grace Primary School
ik TR KIBATTIEIE — N2

Address  : Estate Primary School No. 1, Tai Yuen Estate, Tai Po, N.T.
BEE Tel :(852) 2668 6112

fEH Fax :(852) 2668 6512

E# Email : info@taipocrgps.edu.hk

9 RBE RS
Early Childhood Education Services

MAERENERENZER

NTWJWA Cheung Fat Nursery School

itk ABKREBREAEROEER

Address  :5/F, Cheung Fat Estate Community Centre, Cheung Fat Estate, Tsing Yi, N.T.
TiE Tel  :(852) 2433 8184

f&H Fax  :(852) 24338991

BE Email : cf@ntwjwacfns.edu.hk

MAEREMNEHENZER
NTWJWA Fanling Nursery School

ik (S ERBRERRE B R CEMT

Address  :G/F Wing B & C, Chun King House, King Shing Court, Fanling, N.T.
Bt Tel  :(852) 2682 0877

fEH Fax  :(852) 26820552

EE Email : fl@ntwjwaflns.edu.hk
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MARRENEERN ZER

NTWJWA Pok Hong Nursery School

ok DRV HAERIELEM T 21-28 5%

Address  :Units 21-28, G/F, Pok On House, Pok Hong Estate, Shatin, N.T.
B Tel  :(852) 2649 9006

{5H Fax  :(852) 2649 0022

E# Email : ph@ntwjwaphns.edu.hk

MAmEEEN g Lk REBR

NTWJWA Sheung Shui Nursery School

ik CET R LOKERES 2 SRt EMHE AL HIE

Address  :5/F, North District Community Centre, 2 Lung Wan Street, Sheung Shui, N.T.
TiETel 1 (852) 26725710

fHE Fax :(852) 26725725

BEH Email : ss@ntwjwassns.edu.hk

W RfREA ETiA% R 2R
NTWJWA Yuen Long Nursery School

ok CHTSRTRREE B R 4 SRTRAAE E 409 E

Address  :Room 409, Yuen Long Town Hall, 4 Tai Yuk Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
EE Tel  :(852) 2944 3443

f8H Fax  :(852) 2449 4789

EH Email : yl@ntwjwaylns.edu.hk

MEEHEERETPRRHHEER

Pentecostal Church of Hong Kong Leung Sing Tak Anglo-Chinese Kindergarten
ik (AR ERE RS OE TS

Address  :4/F Podium, Sheung Ming House, Sheung Tak Estate, Tseung Kwan O, N.T.
B Tel :(852) 2177 0272

f#E Fax  :(852)21770788

BE Email : info@lstackg.edu.hk

2R
Social Services

MR EREN EHERBHERRENS PO
NTWJWASSDL Pak U Neighbourhood Elderly Centre

Hink DTSR TTRRH KRR AR AE M T 1 58

Address  :No. 1, G/F, Hung Shing House, Hung Fuk Estate, Hung Shui Kiu, Yuen Long, N.T.
BsE Tel  :(852) 24431533

{558 Fax  :(852) 24705263

BE Email : pu@ntwjwa.org.hk

MAEFEEN g RECERERBE SO

NTWJWA Community Care Centre for the Elderly

ik DR ITRAM BRI RS TR 1 5%

Address  :No. 1, G/F, Hung Shing House, Hung Fuk Estate, Hung Shui Kiu, Yuen Long, N.T.
B|iE Tel  :(852) 24431533

@E Fax  :(852) 24705263

EBEL Email : ccsvi@ntwjwa.org.hk
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ATk
DONATION FORM

TANRBBERUUZF R RIRREN FORS -

I would like to donate to support the services of New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Limited.

BREEAER Donor's Information

#Z Name (* & Mr / Z2E= Ms/ /\iE Miss)
H4% 8B E Contact No. BEMIE Email Address
RS AL Postal Address

}857 & %F Donation Amount
1 HKS$100 1 HKS500 [0 HKS$1,000 [T HKS

#8575 3% Donation Method

[ B A\$R17 5 0 Direct Bank-in
Eﬂfﬁﬁ HSBC 018-089557-001
RIBTFRWR EREREREFEM R EHRENEERAT » LUEZHERBIE
Please mail the original bank pay-in-slip together with this form to the New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare
Association Limited for an official receipt.

(] 8487 Z Crossed Cheque
SRR R A TRENEERAT iltl_l—JJtt%%ﬂ%ﬁlil v BUEE IR -
Please make your cheque payable to the “New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Limited” and return
together with this form for an official receipt.

S Z8EEE Cheque No.

L] PayMe @)
AR TFRIREG S B LUER PayMe EITHRR ) LWEZBRRBERBRBEETEHAFEFRENEERAT » gt ."‘. :
DB S K IE TOUHE - %’5 75y
Please scan the QR code by mobile phone to make donation by PayMe and mail the screen capture of the o g

donation together with this form for an official receipt.

0
Lot At T

Pt

O] 25

87 kIE Donation Receipt

BRUIEFZ Name on receipt (* 4 Mr / &£ Ms / /\iB Miss)
(WNE2$EFRE R If different from donor's name)

[ AEETERES » BTAEEIBFUIE - To save administration costs, no donation receipt is required.

BN EEULEERER Personal Information Collection Statement

WRFEFRENEERAR (£8) FRBUEAER (FAR ) RO)NRERERFEFENEAER  BFERE=FLER / FIRHENEAAE
# o AEREAENEAZR (@E - it - BIEREH) UMEHEREE « S SEIHIREERFHERR - XAEENWEE AR
BERAENEAERAR ERAR - NEFREER  HEUTSENME V) 5% - BEEERAAEEN  FPRHERELERENEAER
ELREERE  BRL2%  FRIARRERE 24770104 ©

New Territories Women & Juveniles Welfare Association Limited ( “NTWJWA” ) shall comply with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
in handling and keeping your personal data. NTWJWA will not sell and/or provide your personal data to any third party. NTWJWA
intends to use your personal data (name, address, telephone no. and email) for future correspondences, fund-raising appeals,
promotional activities, conducting survey, or other related promotional purposes. NTWJWA will not use your personal data for the
above purposes unless you give your consent. If you do not agree to the use of your personal data for the above purposes, please
indicate by putting a tick in the box below. You have the right to access, correct and request NTWJWA to stop using your personal data
for the above purposes at any time and at no charge by calling 2477 0104 during office hours.
OFRAREHAIBEERNSERLABRFEARNEAERELREERIRE | object to the use of my personal data by NTWJWA for the above
promotional purposes.

KACHE  TRAEHNTREFRENEERATEAE - ERAREEAERRNER -
I have read, understood and accepted the statement regarding the collection, use and provision of personal data by NTWJWA.

% E Signature: HHA Date:

#B5E Telephone: 2477 0104 BES Email: ntwjwa@ntwjwa.org.hk #311k Website: www.ntwjwa.org.hk
ik Address: B R TEAEE I 4 SETBAKEE 401 = Room 401, Yuen Long Town Hall, 4 Tai Yuk Road, Yuen Long, N.T. Hong Kong
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NEW TERRITORIES WOMEN &
JUVENILES WELFARE ASSOCIATION
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Address: Room 401, Yuen Long Town Hall, 4 Tai Yuk Road, Yuen Long, N.T.
BiETel: (852) 2477 0104

fEEFax: (852) 2479 4533
BEPE-mail: ntwjwa@ntwjwa.org.hk
#@tWebsite: https://www.ntwjwa.org.hk
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